
December 3, 2014           Agenda 
1 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours. 

A G E N D A  

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
DECEMBER 3, 2014 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, 

please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
CLOSED SESSION (1) 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Govt. Code section 54956.9(d)(4) 
RECONVENE AND ANNOUNCE ACTION (IF APPROPRIATE) 

ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION MEETING 
REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
AGENDA CHANGES 
MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 
PUBLIC COMMENT- Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the 

posted agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an 
item not scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed 
on a future agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS (1) 
None.  
  



December 3, 2014           Agenda 
2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.6)-All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine 

by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items, 
unless a Councilmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be discussed at 
the end of the Agenda. 

2.1 MINUTES. 
 Recommendation:  Approve the Regular City Council Meeting Minutes of October 1, 

2014 and November 5, 2014 and the Special Meeting Minutes of November 13, 2014. 
2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 85575 

through 85714 with a subtotal amount of $1,510,238.86 and Payroll Checks/Direct 
Deposits 46272 through 46316 for a subtotal amount of $295,025.67 for a total amount 
of $1,805,264.53. 

2.3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2014-1148 – AN 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH, 
CALIFORNIA AMENDING TITLE 2 ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL, 
SECTIONS 2.12.140 AND 2.18.010 OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE 
RELATED TO COUNCIL PROCEDURES AND CITY COMMISSIONS.  (0410-95) 

 Recommendation:  That the City Council waives the reading in full and adopts 
Ordinance No. 2014-1148. 

2.4 LOCAL APPOINTMENTS LIST.  (0460-45) 
 Recommendation:  That the City Council approves the Local Appointments List in 

compliance with California Government Code §54972 and designates the Imperial 
Beach Branch Library (the public library with the largest service population within 
jurisdiction) to receive a copy of the list in compliance with California Government 
§54973. 

2.5 MCDONALDS (APPLICANT); TIME EXTENSION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE COASTAL 
PERMIT (ACP 130001), DESIGN REVIEW (DRC 130002), AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(SPR 130003) FOR A REMODEL AND ADDITION TO THE MCDONALD’S 
RESTAURANT AT 1135 PALM AVENUE (APN 626-301-18-00 & 626-301-31-00). 
RESOLUTION 2014-7528.  (0600-20) 

 Recommendation:  That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2014-7528, approving a 
six month extension for Administrative Coastal Permit (ACP 130001), Design Review 
Case (DRC 130002), and Site Plan Review (SPR 130003), which makes the necessary 
findings and provides conditions of approval in compliance with local and state 
requirements. 

2.6 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7530 APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND CITY MANAGER, ANDY 
HALL.  (0530-60) 

 Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 
2.7 ADMINISTRATIVE COASTAL PERMIT (ACP 120004), DESIGN REVIEW (DRC 

120005), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 120006), AND FINAL MAP (TM 120007) FOR A 
NEW AFFORDABLE HOUSING COMPLEX CONSISTING OF SIX ATTACHED 
CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 776 10TH STREET (APN 626-282-12-00). MF 1086.  
(0600-20) 

 Recommendation:  That the City Council Approve the Final Map for recordation. 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3) 
None.  

  



December 3, 2014           Agenda 
3 

PUBLIC HEARINGS (4.1) 
4.1 INTEGRAL COMMUNITIES (OWNER/APPLICANT); CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

(CUP 130073), DESIGN REVIEW CASE (DRC 130028), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 
130029), TENTATIVE MAP (TM 130030), AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION (EIA 130031 AND SCH #2014091072) FOR THE DEMOLITION OF 
AN EXISTING RECREATION VEHICLE PARK AND CONSTRUCTION OF 193 NEW 
RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 500 HIGHWAY 75 IN THE C/MU-1 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE), R-3000-D (TWO-FAMILY DETACHED 
RESIDENTIAL), AND UR (URBAN RESERVE) ZONES.  MF 1100.  (0600-20) 

 Recommendation: 
1. Declare the public hearing open; 
2. Receive report and entertain public testimony;  
3. Close the public hearing and consider the project; and  
4. That the City Council adopt Resolution 2014-7529, approving Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP 130073), Design Review Case (DRC 130028), Site Plan Review (SPR 
130029), Tentative Map (TM 130030), and Mitigated Negative Declaration (EIA 
130031 and SCH #2014091072) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
which makes the necessary findings and provides conditions of approval in 
compliance with local and state requirements. 

REPORTS (5.1-5.3) 
5.1 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7533 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

OR HIS DESIGNEE TO APPLY FOR THE 2014 ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS 
GRANT (AFG) REQUESTING FUNDING FOR REPLACEMENT OF THE SOURCE 
CAPTURE EXHAUST EXTRICATION SYSTEM AND THE STATION ALERTING 
SYSTEM.  (0940-10) 
Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

5.2 FURLOUGH INFORMATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7531 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PROVIDE RETENTION STIPENDS FOR 
NON-DEPARTMENT HEAD LEVEL EMPLOYEES.  (0520-60) 
Recommendation:  Staff is recommending that the City Council accept and file the 
information about the furlough schedule. Staff is further recommending that the City 
Council, by adopting Resolution No. 2014-7531, join the City Manager and Department 
Heads in providing an employee retention stipend of $250 per full time employees and 
$125 to part time employees. 

5.3  RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7532 ACCEPTING THE ATP GRANT OF $709,000 FOR ELM 
AVENUE (SEACOAST DRIVE TO 7TH STREET) TRAFFIC, PEDESTRIAN AND 
CYCLING SAFETY AND MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS AND APPROPRIATING 
$750,000 TRANSNET FUNDS TO THE RECONSTRUCTION OF ELM AVENUE 
(SEACOAST DRIVE TO 7TH STREET) PROJECT.  (0390-86 & 0720-25) 
Recommendation: Adopt resolution. 

I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (6) 
None.  
ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 

 
The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 

involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 
VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 

www.imperialbeachca.gov 
          /s/    

Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

http://www.imperialbeachca.gov/












































































































































   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7529 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP 130073), DESIGN REVIEW 
CASE (DRC 130028), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130029), TENTATIVE MAP (TM 130030), 
AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (EIA 130031 AND SCH #2014091072) FOR 
THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING RECREATION VEHICLE PARK AND CONSTRUCTION 
OF 193 NEW RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 500 HIGHWAY 75 IN THE C/MU-1 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE), R-3000-D (TWO-FAMILY DETACHED 
RESIDENTIAL), AND UR (URBAN RESERVE) ZONES.  MF 1100. 

DEVELOPER:  INTEGRAL COMMUNITIES 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 2014, the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach held a 
duly advertised and noticed public hearing to consider the merits of approving or denying an 
application for an Conditional Use Permit (CUP 130073), Design Review Case (DRC 130028), 
Site Plan Review (SPR 130029), Tentative Map (TM 130030), and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (EIA 130031 and SCH #2014091072) for the redevelopment of an existing 124-
space adult recreational vehicle (RV) park located at 500 Highway 75 into to a gated residential 
community of 190 townhomes and 3 detached single-family houses, for a total of 193 dwelling 
units, and related facilities (Phase 1), as well as the construction of a Class I Bike Path 
connecting the San Diego Bayshore Bikeway to the proposed residential community (Phase 2).  
Phase 1 would feature a 100-foot buffer zone along Pond 10A of the South San Diego Bay Unit 
of the San Diego Bay National Wildlife Refuge, which would include an outer 50 feet of wetland 
creation and transition into an inner 50 feet that would contain the proposed bike path and 
bioretention areas. Phase 2 would extend the bike path connection to the Bayshore Bikeway 
along the eastern boundary of Pond 10A.  The majority of the project site is located within the 
General Commercial & Mixed-Use (C/MU-1) Zone. However, a portion of the project fronting 7th 
Street measuring approximately 11,250 square feet and is located within the Two-Family 
Detached Residential (R-3000-D) Zone, and the parcel containing the Bike Path extension is 
located in the UR (Urban Reserve) Zone.  The project site is legally described as follows:  

 
Parcel 1:  APN 625-140-20 

Blocks 8 and 9 and portions of blocks 6, 7 and 10 of South Coronado, in the City of 
Imperial Beach, County of San Diego, State of California, according to map thereof no. 
229, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, August 23, 1887,  

Together with those portions of the streets and alleys adjoining said blocks as vacated 
and closed to public use lying northerly and northeasterly of a line described as follows: 

Beginning at a point in the east line of the southeast quarter of section 19, township 18 
south, range 2 west, San Bernardino base and meridian, according to official plat 
thereof, being also the east line of said South Coronado, distant thereon north 00° 41' 
07" east, 391.82 feet from a chiseled "x" in pavement in Palm Avenue, set for the 
southeast corner of said section 19; thence from a tangent which bears north 59° 40' 59" 
west along a curve to the right with a radius of 2161.00 feet, through an angle of 47° 53' 
41" a distance of 1806.43 feet to a point on the southerly line of the peninsula of San 
Diego, according to map thereof on file in book 1, page 55 of patents in the office of said 
County Recorder being also the southerly city limit of the City of Coronado, distant 
thereon south 68° 31' 44" west, 57.67 feet from a 6 inch by 6 inch concrete monument in 
36 inch concrete base set for corner no. 163 of said peninsula of San Diego. Excepting 
therefrom that portion thereof lying within the south half of the southeast quarter of the 
southeast quarter of said section 19. 

scarballo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1

scarballo
Typewritten Text



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 2 of 13 

 
 

 

Except therefrom that portion thereof lying within the south half of the southeast quarter 
of the southeast quarter of said section 19. 

Also excepting therefrom that parcel of land described in deed to western salt company, 
recorded December 23, 1938 in book 850, page 421 of said official records, described 
as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the north line of said southeast quarter of the southeast quarter 
of said section, distant thereon north 89° 52' 00" west, 381.44 feet from the northeast 
corner of said southeast quarter of the southeast quarter; thence south 47° 57' 00" west, 
270.90 feet; thence south 67° 34' 00" west, 100.00 feet to a point on the north and south 
center line of said southeast quarter of the southeast quarter, distant thereon north 00° 
03' 45" east, 440.00 feet from the south line of said north half of the southeast quarter of 
the southeast quarter; thence north 89° 52' 00" west, 60.00 feet; thence north 18° 14' 00" 
west, 232.10 feet to a point on the north line of said southeast quarter of the southeast 
quarter, distant thereon south 89° 52' 00" east, 541.25 feet from the northwest corner of 
said portion of section 19; thence south 89° 52' 00" east along said north line 426.20 feet 
to the point of beginning. 

Parcel 2: 

That portion of the south 659.56 feet of the northwest quarter of the southwest quarter of 
the southwest quarter and that portion of the southwest quarter of the southwest quarter 
of the southwest quarter, all in section 20, township 18, south, range 2 west, San 
Bernardino base and meridian, in the City of Imperial Beach, County of San Diego, State 
of California, lying westerly of the westerly line of block 70 of South San Diego 
Company's addition to San Diego, according to Map No. 497, filed in the Office of the 
County Recorder of said county. 

Excepting from said southwest quarter of the southwest quarter of the southwest quarter 
that portion thereof lying southerly of the easterly prolongation of the south line of the 
north 24.00 feet of the east half of the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of the 
southeast quarter of section 19, township 18 south, range 2 west, San Bernardino base 
and meridian, according to official plat thereof. 

Parcel 3: 

The north 24.00 feet of the east half of the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of 
the southeast quarter of section 19, township 18 south, range 2 west, San Bernardino 
base and meridian, in the City of Imperial Beach, County of San Diego, State of 
California, according to official plat thereof. 

Excepting therefrom that portion lying southwesterly of the northeasterly line of the 
California state highway as described in deed to the State of California, recorded 
January 6, 1954 in book 5103, page 402 of official records. 

Parcel 4: 

That part of that portion of the west half of the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter 
of the southeast quarter of section 19, township 18 south, range 2 west, San Bernardino 
base and meridian, according to official plat thereof, as described in deed conveyed to 
the State of California, recorded January 6, 1954 in book 5103, page 395 on file in the 
Office of the County Recorder of San Diego county lying northeasterly of the following 
described line: 

Beginning at a point on the east line of said section 19, distant along said east line north 
00° 41' 07" east, 391.82 feet from the southeast corner of said section 19; thence 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 3 of 13 

 
 

 

northwesterly, from a tangent which bears north 59° 40' 59" west along a curve concave 
northeasterly, with a radius of 2161.00 feet through an angle of 47° 53' 41", a distance of 
1806.43 feet to the southerly line of Rancho Peninsula of San Diego according to 
patents book 1, pages 55 to 57, distant along said southerly line south 68° 31' 44" west 
57.67 feet from a 6-inch by 6-inch concrete monument set for corner no. 163 of said 
Rancho Peninsula, said southerly line being also the southerly City limit line of the City 
of Coronado. 

Parcel 5: 

Lots 71, 72 and 73 in block 70 of South San Diego company’s addition to South San 
Diego, in the City of Imperial Beach, County of San Diego, State of California, according 
to Map thereof No. 497, filed in the Office of the County Recorder of San Diego County, 
October 4, 1887. 

Together with that portion of the westerly 10 feet of seventh street adjoining said lots 71, 
72 and 73 on the east as closed and vacated to public use by City Council of the City of 
Imperial Beach, resolution 1439, recorded November 4, 1968 as instrument no. 193024.  

Parcel 6:  APN 626-010-18 

That portion of section 20, township 18 south, range 2 west, San Bernardino meridian, in 
the City of Imperial Beach, County of San Diego, State of California, according to the 
official plat thereof, lying westerly of South San Diego, according to Map thereof No. 
497, filed in the office of the county recorder of said county, and lying southerly of the 
westerly prolongation of the northerly line of block 70 of said Map No. 497. 

Excepting that portion lying southerly of the northerly line of the south 659.56 feet of the 
northwest quarter of the southwest quarter of the southwest quarter of said section 20. 

WHEREAS, on July 21, 2014, the Tidelands Advisory Committee recommended 
approval of the project with a vote of 3-1 (one member absent); and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 1, 2014, the Design Review Board recommended approval of the 

project with the following proposed condition:  The 7th Street emergency access lane be an exit-
only gate for the residents between the hours of 6AM to 9AM.  However, the proposed condition 
was not incorporated into the project due to traffic-related concerns for residents along and in 
the vicinity of 7th Street; and  

 
WHEREAS, the project design of 193 dwelling units and a Class I Bike Path is 

compatible with the community and would be consistent with Policy D-8 (Project Design) of the 
Design Element of the General Plan; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the project is in substantial compliance with the 

Land Use Element of the General Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this project complies with the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality (CEQA) as a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) had been prepared for this project 
and was routed for public review from October 2, 2014 to November 3, 2014 and submitted to 
the State Clearinghouse (SCH #2014091072) for agency review; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program has been prepared that 

establishes mitigation measures that will avoid or reduce all potentially significant environmental 
impacts identified in the MND to below a level of significance; and 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 4 of 13 

 
 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council further offers the following findings in support of its decision 

to conditionally approve the project: 
 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT: 

1. That the proposed use is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility 
which will contribute to the general well-being of the neighborhood or community; 
The project proposes the construction of 193 dwelling units and a Class I Bike Path 
connecting the San Diego Bayshore Bikeway to the proposed residential community.  A 
portion of the Bike Path would locate on a parcel located in the UR (Urban Reserve) 
Zone.  The UR Zone is intended to prevent isolated or premature land uses from 
occurring on lands for which adequate public services and facilities are unavailable or for 
which the determination of the appropriate zoning regulations is precluded by 
contemplated or adopted planning proposals or by a lack of economic, demographic, 
geographic or other data.  It is intended that the UR Zone will be replaced by other use 
regulations when the aforementioned conditions no longer exist.  The permitted uses 
(subject to a Conditional Use Permit) are those which are community service oriented, 
interim uses, or uses which, with appropriate development regulations, will not 
prematurely commit the land to a particular use or intensity of development.  Providing a 
Class I Bike Path facility on a vacant parcel that would connect the Bayshore Bikeway to 
Highway 75 would be considered an appropriate community-service oriented use within 
this land use designation.  It has been the objective of City of Imperial Beach to 
encourage transportation demand management strategies, bicycle facilities, active 
recreational amenities, and pedestrian-friendly environments.  In addition, California 
State Legislature has shown that it is the goal of the State to increase the number of 
trips Californians take by bicycling, walking, and other forms of active transportation in 
order to help meet the state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals, improve 
Californians’ health by helping people be active, and stimulate the economy. 

2. That the use will not, under the circumstances of the particular use, be detrimental 
to the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or working in the 
vicinity, or injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity; 
California Legislature has shown that it is the goal of the state to increase the number of 
trips Californians take by bicycling, walking, and other forms of active transportation in 
order to help meet the state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals, improve 
Californians’ health by helping people be active, and stimulate the economy.  It is also 
the objective of City of Imperial Beach to encourage transportation demand 
management strategies, bicycle facilities, and pedestrian-friendly environments.  
Providing a Class I Bike Path facility on a vacant parcel that would connect the Bayshore 
Bikeway to Highway 75 would be considered an appropriate community-service oriented 
use within this land use designation.  The proposed use will not be detrimental to the 
health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or working in the vicinity, or 
injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity.   

3. That the proposed use will comply with the regulations and conditions specified 
in this title for the use and for other permitted uses in the same zone; and 
The proposed uses will comply with the regulations and conditions specified in the title 
for the uses permitted in the C/MU-1 (General Commercial & Mixed-Use), R-3000-D 
(Two-Family Detached Residential), and UR (Urban Reserve) Zones.   



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 5 of 13 

 
 

 

4. That the granting of the conditional use permit will be in harmony with the 
purpose and intent of the zoning code, the adopted General Plan and the adopted 
Local Coastal Program 
The granting of the Conditional Use Permit the proposed use will be in harmony with the 
purpose and intent of the zoning code, General Plan, and Local Coastal Program 
because the in the UR Zone are those which are community service oriented, interim 
uses, or uses which, with appropriate development regulations, will not prematurely 
commit the land to a particular use or intensity of development.  Providing a Class I Bike 
Path facility on a vacant parcel that would connect the Bayshore Bikeway to Highway 75 
would be considered an appropriate community-service oriented use within this land use 
designation.  It has been the objective of City of Imperial Beach to encourage 
transportation demand management strategies, bicycle facilities, active recreational 
amenities, and pedestrian-friendly environments.  In addition, California State 
Legislature has shown that it is the goal of the State to increase the number of trips 
Californians take by bicycling, walking, and other forms of active transportation in order 
to help meet the state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals, improve 
Californians’ health by helping people be active, and stimulate the economy.   
  

DESIGN REVIEW/SITE PLAN REVIEW:  
5. The proposed use does not have any detrimental effect upon the general health, 

safety and convenience of persons residing or working in the neighborhood, or is 
not detrimental or injurious to the value of the property and improvements in the 
neighborhood. 
The project proposes the construction of 193 dwelling units and a Class I Bike Path 
connecting the San Diego Bayshore Bikeway to the proposed residential community.  
The project would not have a detrimental effect on the general health, welfare, safety 
and convenience of persons residing or working in the neighborhood because it is 
consistent with the development standards and zoning designations. The development 
would not be injurious to the value of the property and improvements in the 
neighborhood because the project represents an improvement of the existing conditions 
and the project could improve property values and stimulate growth in the area. 

6. The proposed use does not adversely affect the General Plan or the Local Coastal 
Plan. 
The General Plan/Local Coastal Plan designates the site as General Commercial & 
Mixed-Use (C/MU-1 Zone), R-3000-D (Two-Family Detached Residential Zone), and UR 
(Urban Reserve Zone).  The project complies with the uses and standards of each 
respective zone and does not adversely affect the General Plan or the Local Coastal 
plan.  It has been the objective of City of Imperial Beach to encourage transportation 
demand management strategies, bicycle facilities, active recreational amenities, and 
pedestrian-friendly environments.  In addition, California State Legislature has shown 
that it is the goal of the State to increase the number of trips Californians take by 
bicycling, walking, and other forms of active transportation in order to help meet the 
state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals, improve Californians’ health by 
helping people be active, and stimulate the economy. 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 6 of 13 

 
 

 

7. The proposed use is compatible with other existing and proposed uses in the 
neighborhood. 
The site is bordered by pond 10A to the north, residences to the east and west, and a 
commercial shopping center to the south.  The proposed residential units and Class I 
Bike Path facilities are compatible with other uses in the neighborhood. 

8. The location, site layout and design of the proposed use orients the proposed 
structures to streets, driveways, sunlight, wind and other adjacent structures and 
uses in a harmonious manner. 
The proposed buildings would locate in a manner that would provide harmonious access 
throughout the site and be compatible with the surrounding structures and uses in the 
neighborhood. 

9. The combination and relationship of one proposed use to another on the site is 
properly integrated. 
The project proposes residential uses and a Class I Bike Path facility that are properly 
integrated.  The design style and the choice of building materials properly integrate the 
buildings. 

10. Access to and parking for the proposed use does not create any undue traffic 
problem. 
Vehicular ingress and egress to and from the site would primarily be provided through one gated 
entry off of Highway 75 at the Rainbow Drive intersection, though 7th Street will also have access 
for emergency vehicles.  The Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the project 
identifies mitigation measures that will avoid or reduce all potentially significant 
environmental effects to below a level of significance, including traffic.  The ingress and 
egress for the project should not create undue traffic problems.  

11. All other applicable provisions of the Zoning Code are complied with. 
The project is consistent with the General Plan and the Zoning development standards 
for the site.    

12. Any other considerations as the Community Development Department deem 
necessary to preserve the health, safety and convenience of the City in general. 
Standard and applicable conditions of approval have been included with the Resolution 
to further ensure that the health, safety, welfare, and convenience of the City in general 
is preserved. 

13. Public Notice requirements, pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Section 19.87.100, 
have been satisfied. 
The project description and the date of the City Council public hearing were sent to 
property owners within 300 feet and occupants within 300 feet of the subject site on 
November 20, 2014, and a public hearing notice was published in the Imperial Beach 
Eagle & Times newspaper on November 20, 2014. 

 
TENTATIVE MAP FINDINGS:  
14. The proposed tentative tract map is consistent with the General Plan/Local 

Coastal Plan. 
 The proposed subdivision is consistent with the General Plan and zoning designations 

because the lots will meet the lot area and frontage requirements.  



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 7 of 13 

 
 

 

15. The design or improvement of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the 
General Plan/Local Coastal Plan. 

 The General Plan/Local Coastal Plan designates the site as General Commercial & 
Mixed-Use (C/MU-1 Zone), R-3000-D (Two-Family Detached Residential Zone), and UR 
(Urban Reserve Zone).  The project complies with the uses and standards of each 
respective zone and does not adversely affect the General Plan or the Local Coastal 
plan.  It has been the objective of City of Imperial Beach to encourage transportation 
demand management strategies, bicycle facilities, active recreational amenities, and 
pedestrian-friendly environments.  In addition, California State Legislature has shown 
that it is the goal of the State to increase the number of trips Californians take by 
bicycling, walking, and other forms of active transportation in order to help meet the 
state’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals, improve Californians’ health by 
helping people be active, and stimulate the economy. 

16. The site is physically suitable for the type of development. 
The site is physically suitable for the proposed development.  The Mitigated Negative 
Declaration prepared for the project identifies mitigation measures that will avoid or 
reduce all potentially significant environmental effects to below a level of significance, 
including grading and drainage. 

17. The design of the subdivision will not cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantial and avoidable injury to fish or wildlife, or their habitat. 

 The project involves new construction in a developed urban area.  The Mitigated 
Negative Declaration reviewed all potential biological impacts and identifies mitigation 
measures that will avoid or reduce all potentially significant environmental effects to 
below a level of significance. 

18. The design of the subdivision will not cause serious public health problems. 
 The development will meet all construction requirements and will be served by municipal 

water and sewer service and would not result in public health problems. 

19. The design of the subdivision will not conflict with any easement of record. 
 A design of the subdivision will not conflict with any easement of record.  
20. All requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) have been 

fulfilled. 
 This project complies with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 

(CEQA) as a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) had been prepared for this project 
and was routed for public review from October 2, 2014 to November 3, 2014 and 
submitted to the State Clearinghouse (SCH #2014091072) for agency review.  The City 
conducted an Environmental Initial Study (IS) that determined the proposed project 
could have a potentially significant environmental effect in the following areas: Biological 
Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, Noise, and Traffic.  The MND 
identifies mitigation measures that will avoid or reduce all potentially significant 
environmental effects to below a level of significance. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Imperial 

Beach that the above-listed findings and recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by 
reference; and 

 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 8 of 13 

 
 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach that 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP 130073), Design Review Case (DRC 130028), Site Plan Review 
(SPR 130029), Tentative Map (TM 130030), and Mitigated Negative Declaration (EIA 130031 
and SCH #2014091072) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 
redevelopment of an existing 124-space adult recreational vehicle (RV) park located at 500 
Highway 75 into to a gated residential community of 190 townhomes and 3 detached single-
family houses, for a total of 193 dwelling units, and construction of a Class I Bike Path 
connecting the San Diego Bayshore Bikeway to the proposed residential community, are hereby 
approved subject to the following: 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
1. Approval of the Conditional Use Permit (130073), Design Review Case (DRC 130028), 

Site Plan Review (SPR 130029), Tentative Map (TM 130030), and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (EIA 130031 and SCH #2014091072) is valid for three years from the date 
of final action by the City Council to expire December 3, 2017, unless vested with 
substantial construction pursuant to an approved building permit.  Approvals of the 
Conditional Use Permit (130073), Design Review Case (DRC 130028), Site Plan Review 
(SPR 130029), and Mitigated Negative Declaration (EIA 130031 and SCH 
#2014091072) shall run coterminous with the tentative map.   

2. The site shall be developed in substantial compliance with the plans dated August 25, 
2014, on file at the Community Development Department, or as otherwise amended and 
approved, and the conditions contained herein. 

3. All drainage and water quality requirements shall be in compliance with approved 
Hydrology & Hydraulic Study and Stormwater Management Plan and dated August 25, 
2014 on file at the Community Development Department, or as otherwise amended and 
approved. 

4. Environmental Mitigation Measures:  Project shall comply with the technical appendices 
and any required mitigation measures provided for in the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(SCH #2014091072). 

5. Project shall provide anti-perching measures to prevent raptor perching, subject to 
approval by the City of Imperial Beach. 

6. Construction of the proposed Class I Bike Path facility extending from State Route 75 
though the project site and northward along the eastern boundary of Pond 10A to the 
San Diego Bayshore Bikeway is required.  If construction of the Bike Path facility is 
constructed as Phase 2 of the project, Developer shall provide a bond payment sufficient 
to pay for all anticipated costs including permits, approvals and construction prior to the 
issuance of building permits for the project itself.  Bond payment is subject to City review 
and approval. 

7. The Class I Bike Path facility shall be dedicated to the City.  In addition, a maintenance 
agreement shall be prepared between the Developer and the City prior to construction of 
the Bike Path facility. 

8. An easement shall be provided to the City to provide a sewer line and manhole at the 
vehicular entrance of the site extending to the southeast in the general location shown 
on plans submitted to the City by the applicant dated October 22, 2014, to provide sewer 
service to the property to the south of the site.  Easement description/language is 
subject to City review and approval and shall be required prior to issuance of building 
permits. 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 9 of 13 

 
 

 

9. Owners shall use garages for parking with unenclosed parking spaces to be available for 
guest vehicles. 

10. Bicycles and bicycle storage/rental shall be provided and permanently maintained as an 
essential transportation demand management component of the project. 

11. The Project shall allow for property owners to make their units available for short-term 
rental purposes and covenants, conditions, and restrictions (CC&Rs) shall provide for 
adequate operational standards and guidelines for any short-term rental units to address 
and/or mitigate any impacts to residents of the Project.  The CC&Rs shall be subject to 
review and approval by the City of Imperial Beach. 

12. Developer shall design and construct off-site public improvements consistent with the 
Palm Avenue Master Mixed Use and Commercial Corridor Plan along Project frontage, 
subject to approval by the City.  Developer shall submit detailed improvement plan 
drawings to the City prior to building permit issuance.  If construction of such 
improvements must be delayed pending approval of the Palm Avenue Mixed Use and 
Commercial Corridor Master Plan, Developer shall agree to provide its “fair share” 
towards construction of those improvements upon approval. 

13. The Conditional Use Permit required for the portion of the Bike Path facility located in the 
Urban Reserve Zone shall receive automatic renewal every five years.  

14. Developer shall obtain all required permit approvals that are necessary from other 
regulatory agencies (California Coastal Commission, California Department of 
Transportation, Army Corps of Engineers, United States Fish & Wildlife, etc.).  

15. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans):  Entrance gates to the project shall 
remain open during AM and PM peak traffic periods to alleviate queuing onto California 
State Route 75.  Queuing from the project entrance gates shall be monitored and 
adjustment of the hours when the gates remain open may be necessary, subject to the 
discretion of the City. 

16. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans):  Any work performed within Caltrans 
right-of-way will require discretionary review and approval by Caltrans and an 
encroachment permit will be required for any work within the Caltrans right-of-way prior 
to construction.   

17. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans):  Project must comply with Surface 
Transportation Assistance Act, or signs must be posted to prohibit turning movements 
onto the development if the entrance for the project is not designed to accommodate 
Surface Transportation Assistance Act trucks.   

18. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans):  The proposed pedestrian ramp on 
the southeast corner shall be a dual ramp to serve east-west crossing on California 
State Route 75 and north-south crossing on Rainbow Drive.  All pedestrian ramps are 
subject to review by Caltrans and must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
standards. 

19. California Department of Transportation (Caltrans):  Project shall lengthen the eastbound 
left-turn pocket on California State Route 75 at Rainbow Drive to meet Caltrans 
standards. 

20. Separate design and zoning review and approval by the City’s Community Development 
Department for all signage will be required.   



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 10 of 13 

 
 

 

21. Project shall provide interpretive signage regarding the San Diego Bay National Wildlife 
Refuge, sensitive habitat and wildlife species, and the Bayshore Bikeway.  Signage shall 
be subject to review and approval by the City of Imperial Beach and U.S. Fish & Wildlife. 

22. Drought tolerant landscaping shall be provided throughout the site.   

23. All landscaping and bio-filtration areas shall be maintained by the Developer.  All 
landscaped areas shall be permanently maintained in a healthy condition, free from 
weeds, trash, and debris. 

24. A permanent irrigation system shall be installed and permanently maintained to serve all 
landscaped areas. 

25. All building permits required for the project shall be obtained from the Imperial Beach 
Building Department. 

26. This project is subject to all Model Codes, State Codes and City Ordinances adopted by 
the City of Imperial Beach. 

27. A licensed surveyor/engineer shall verify pad elevations and all building corners and 
setbacks. 

28. HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION - No work for which a building permit is required shall be 
performed within the hours of 7:00 P.M. - 7:00 A.M. Monday - Friday, nor prior to 8:00 
A.M. or after 5:00 P.M. on Saturday. Construction work on Sundays shall be approved 
by the City.  

29. The hot water tank P.T. discharge pipe shall be piped to discharge to the sanitary sewer 
system or the landscape area.  A design that has the water discharge directly into the 
storm drain conveyance system (onto an impervious surface that flows to the street) is in 
violation of the Municipal Storm Water Permit - Order R9-2013-0001. 

30. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the sewer lateral (existing and new) locations shall 
be drawn on the plans and submitted to the City for review and approval. 

31. Existing sewer line shall remain in service until new sewer line is constructed and 
installed. 

32. Install the new sewer line, test the new pipe per GREENBOOK standards and submit to 
the City for approval. 

33. After obtaining approval, the existing sewer pipe should be observed for a week to 
ensure that no flow is present prior to completion of the installation of the new pipe and 
abandonment in place of the existing pipe. 

34. No building roof or landscape water drains may be piped to the street or onto impervious 
surfaces that lead to the street or to Pond 10A.  A design that has these water 
discharges directly into the storm drain conveyance system (onto an impervious surface 
that flows to the street) is in violation of the Municipal Storm Water Permit - Order R9-
2013-0001. 

35. Project shall employ flood prevention measures and comply with applicable building 
standards and/or mitigation measures required to address flooding and sea level rise. 

36. The pedestrian access ramps located along Highway 75 shall be constructed in 
compliance with San Diego Regional Standard Drawing G-27A and shall implement the 
recommendations of the Palm Avenue Mixed Use and Commercial Corridor Master 
Plan.  This work is in the CALTRANS right-of-way and will require approval of an 
encroachment permit from Caltrans. 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 11 of 13 

 
 

 

37. The eastern sidewalk leading into property along Highway 75 shall be reconstructed to 
meet the latest ADA requirements (running slope not to be greater than 5%, and cross 
slope not to be greater than 2%).  Sidewalk shall also be reconstructed to be in 
compliance with San Diego Regional Standard Drawings G-7, G-9, and G-10.  Plans for 
this sidewalk and all off-site public improvements along Palm Avenue/Highway 75 shall 
implement the recommendations of the Palm Avenue Mixed Use and Commercial 
Corridor Master Plan. 

38. The driveway approach located at the 7th Street access point shall be constructed per 
San Diego Regional Standard Drawing G-14A.  The existing utility pole on the southern 
end of driveway shall be removed/relocated to allow for pedestrian access. 

39. For any alley, sidewalk or curb & gutter replacement ensure compliance with San Diego 
Regional Standard Drawing G-11 in that, the “Area to be removed [must be] 5’ or from 
joint to joint in panel, whichever is less.”  The distance between joints or score marks 
must be a minimum of 5-feet.  Where the distance from “Area to be removed”, to existing 
joint, edge or score mark is less than the minimum shown, “Area to be removed” shall be 
extended to that joint, edge or score mark.  

40. For any work to be performed in any street or alley, submit a traffic control plan for 
approval by Public Works Director a minimum of 5 working days in advance of street 
work.  Traffic control plan is to be per Regional Standard Drawings or CALTRANS Traffic 
Control Manual. 

41. For any project that proposes work within the public right-of-way (i.e., driveway 
removal/construction, sidewalk removal/construction, street or alley 
demolition/reconstruction, landscaping and irrigation, fences, walls within the public 
right-of-way, etc.), a Temporary Encroachment Permit (TEP) shall be applied for and 
approved either prior to or concurrent with issuance of the building permit required for 
the project. Application for a Temporary Encroachment Permit shall be made on forms 
available at the Community Development Department Counter.    

42. A separate Encroachment Permit shall be obtained from the CALTRANS permit office 
for any proposed work within the CALTRANS right-of-way. 

43. All street work construction requires a Class A contractor to perform the work.  All 
pavement transitions shall be free of tripping hazards. 

44. Any disposal/transportation of solid waste / construction waste in roll off containers must 
be contracted through the City’s waste management provider unless the hauling 
capability exists integral to the prime contractor performing the work. 

45. Planting areas shall be provided per the recommendations of the agricultural suitability 
test as provided by the landscape contractor prior to installation, subject to City approval. 

46. Survey monuments on 7th Street located on southeast and northeast property lines in the 
sidewalk shall be preserved.   

47. Survey monuments shall be installed along Highway 75 on the southwest and northwest 
property lines in or adjacent to the sidewalk.  These survey monuments shall be 
recorded with county office of records. 

48. For all street construction, in accordance with IBMC 12.32.120, applicant must place and 
maintain warning lights and barriers at each end of the work, and at no more than 50 
feet apart along the side thereof from sunset of each day until sunrise of the following 
day, until the work is entirely completed.  Barriers shall be placed and maintained not 
less than three feet high. 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 12 of 13 

 
 

 

49. This is a Priority Development Project and must meet the conditions for Low Impact 
Development BMPs, Source Control BMPs, and Treatment Control BMPs in the 
Municipal Storm Water Permit - Order R9-2013-0001 and the Standard Urban 
Stormwater Mitigation Plan for Imperial Beach in IBMC 8.32.  Maximum use of Low 
Impact Development (LID) elements shall be employed to reduce pollutant discharge to 
the maximum extent practicable. 

50. Applicant shall provide verification of post construction Best Management Practice 
(BMP) maintenance provisions through a legal agreement, covenant, CEQA mitigation 
requirement, and / or Conditional Use Permit.  Agreement is provided through the 
Community Development Department. 

51. Application shall obtain coverage from the State Water Resources Control Board for a 
Construction General Stormwater Permit and provide the Community Development 
Department a copy of the project’s SWPPP. 

52. The Applicant shall institute “Best Management Practices” to prevent contamination of 
storm drains, ground water and receiving waters during both construction and post 
construction.  The property owner or applicant BMP practices shall include but are not 
limited to: 

• Contain all construction water used in conjunction with the construction.  
Contained construction water is to be properly disposed in accordance with 
Federal, State, and City statutes, regulations and ordinances. 

• All recyclable construction waste must be properly recycled and not disposed in 
the landfill. 

• Water used on site must be prevented from entering the storm drain conveyance 
system (i.e. streets, gutters, alley, storm drain ditches, storm drain pipes). 

• All wastewater resulting from cleaning construction tools and equipment must be 
contained on site and properly disposed in accordance with Federal, State, and 
City statutes, regulations, and ordinances. 

• Erosion control - All sediment on the construction site must be contained on the 
construction site and not permitted to enter the storm drain conveyance system.   
Applicant is to cover disturbed and exposed soil areas of the project with plastic–
like material (or equivalent product) to prevent sediment removal into the storm 
drain system. 

53. Applicant shall underground all utilities along the eastern boundary of the project site in 
accordance with I.B.M.C. 13.08.060. 

54. The automated entry gates shall provide emergency response access at the Highway 75 
entry(s) using a radio signal entry system such as “click 2 enter” allowing immediate 
access to all applicable emergency response agencies (Fire, EMS, and Law 
Enforcement).  

55. In the event of a power outage all automated gates shall “fail in the open position” to 
allow for first responder ingress and resident egress. When power fails all gates shall 
return and stay in the open position until power is restored. 

56. A readily accessible, lighted, all weather site map or address directory shall be provided 
at the Hwy 75 entry(s). 

57. Address identification shall be not less than 8 inches in height posted at locations 
approved by the Fire-Rescue Department. 



Resolution No. 2014-7529 
Page 13 of 13 

 
 

 

58. Fire service features including but not limited to fire apparatus access roads, fire 
hydrants, fire sprinkler systems (in commercial and residential areas) and similar shall 
be identified and maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Fire-Rescue 
Department. 

59. Fire safety during demolition and construction shall be done in compliance with Chapter 
33 of the California Fire Code, 2013 Edition. 

60. (1) 20 foot minimum width access gate shall be provided once jobsite fencing has been 
erected; coordinate with the Fire-Rescue Department for placement prior to 
implementation. This access gate shall remain unlocked anytime the site is occupied. 
Fire-Rescue Department access shall be provided by a KNOX pad lock keyed to the 
Imperial Beach Fire-Rescue Department master key and obtained from the KNOX 
Company by the developer. 

61. The Developer or Developer’s representative shall read, understand, and accept the 
conditions listed herein and shall, within 30 days, return a signed statement to the 
Community Development Department accepting said conditions. 

62. The Developer shall pay off any deficits in his project account (130028) prior to building 
permit issuance and prior to final inspection. 

 
Appeal Process under the California Code of Civil Procedure (CCP): The time within which 
judicial review of a City Council decision must be sought is governed by Section 1094.6 of the 
CCP.  A right to appeal a City Council decision is governed by CCP Section 1094.5 and Chapter 
1.18 of the Imperial Beach Municipal Code. 
 
PROTEST PROVISION:  The 90-day period in which any party may file a protest, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 66020, of the fees, dedications or exactions imposed on this 
development project begins on the date of the final decision. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Imperial 
Beach at its meeting held on the 3rd day of December 2014, by the following vote: 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  

 
 

      
JAMES C. JANNEY, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
JACQUELINE M. HALD, MMC 
CITY CLERK 



scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2





1

6

PROJECT SUMMARY
RESIDENCES 193 HOMES
AREA  10.07 AC
DENSITY  21 DU/AC

OPEN SPACE

REQUIRED
(193 X 300SF) = 75,900 SF

PROVIDED
AT-GRADE = 70,211 SF
BALCONIES =   6,900 SF

TOTAL  = 77,111 SF

BUILDING COVERAGE  3.3 AC (35.48%)
ROAD  2.1 AC (22.58%)
LANDSCAPE  2.5 AC (26.88%)
ENV. BUFFER  2.1 AC (15.05%)
TOTAL 10.07 AC

PARKING
REQUIRED = 291 SP

(190 X 1.5 SP/DU) = 285 SP
(3 X 2 SP/DU) = 6 SP

PROVIDED = 410 SP (2.1 SP/DU)
GARAGES = 386 SP (2%= 8 SP ACCESSIBLE)
OPEN =   24 SP (5%= 1 SP ACCESSIBLE)
BICYCLE = 8 SP

UNIT SUMMARY
PRODUCT A 3 STORY TOWNHOMES

115 TOTAL (40' HT. LIMIT)
14 PLAN A-1 2 BED 1,145 SF
24 PLAN A-1X 2 BED 1,180 SF
14 PLAN A-2 3 BED 1,283 SF
18 PLAN A-2X 3 BED 1,247 SF
21 PLAN A-3 3 BED 1,300 SF
24 PLAN A-4 4 BED 1,640 SF (COMPLY WITH CBC 1102A.3)

PRODUCT B 2 STORY TOWNHOMES
75 TOTAL (40' HT. LIMIT)
24 PLAN B-1 3 BED 1,600 SF
25 PLAN B-2 3 BED 1,800 SF
26 PLAN B-3 4 BED 1,990 SF

PRODUCT C 2 STORY SFD (26' HT. LIMIT)
3 PLAN C-1 5 BED 2,250 SF

A-2

A-2 A-2

A-2 A-2

A-2A-2

A-2 A-2 A-2 A-2

A-1 A-1

A-1 A-1

A-1A-1A-1A-1A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1X

A-1X

A-2X

A-2X A-3

A-2X

A-2X

A-1X

A-1X

A-2X

A-1X

A-1X

A-1X

A-1X

A-2X

A-3

A-3

A-3

A-3

A-4

A-3
A-4

A-4

A-4

A-4 A-4 A-4 A-4 A-4

A-4

A-3

A-3

A-4

A-4

A-3

B-3

B-3 B-3

B-3 B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3B-3B-3

B-3 B-3

B-2B-2B-2B-2

B-2 B-2 B-2 B-2

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-1 B-1

B-1

B-1

B-1B-1

B-1

B-1B-1

B-1

B-1B-1

B-1

B-1

A-4

A-3

A-3

A-4

A-3

A-3

A-4

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-3

B-2

B-1

B-1

B-1

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-3

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-2

B-1

B-3 B-3

B-3B-3

B-2 B-2

B-2B-2

B-1

B-1

B-1 B-1

B-1

B-1A-4

A-4

A-3

A-3

A-4

A-4

A-3

A-3

A-1
A-2

A-4

A-3

A-2X

24
.0'

22.0'

32.0'

24
.0'

24.0'

24.0'

24.0'

24.0'

24.0'

24
.0

'

24.0'

24.0'24.0'24.0'

24
.0

'

24
.0

'

24.0'

24
.0

'

24.0' 24.0'

21.4' 20.2'

20.1'20.4'

17.5' 17.5'

16.4'16.4'

15.2'

15.2'

16
.1'

20.0' 20.5'

20.1'

13
.4

'
22

.2
'

10
.0

'

13.7'
11.0'

20.0'

100.0'

50.0'

50' RESRICTED
ENVIRONMENTAL ZONE

8' B
ICYCLE 

LA
NE

100' BUILDING
SETBACK

TRAIL HEAD
PLAZA

SILVER

STRAN
D

SILVER

STRAND

RECREATION
AREA

SITE PLAN NOTES
1. PROPERTY LINE
2. BUILDING SETBACK
3. GATE W/ KNOX BOX
4. 3 STORY TOWNHOMES
5. 2 STORY TOWNHOMES
6. 2 STORY DETACHED
7. RECREATION AREA
8. COMMUNITY TRAIL
9. TRAIL HEAD
10. ENVIRONMENTAL ZONE
11. ACCESSIBLE PATH
12. BICYCLE PARKING (4 SPACES)

1

1

1

1

1

1

2

3

4

4

4

4 4 4

4

4 4 4

5 5 5

55

5

4

5

7

8

8

9

10

10

10

10

11.0' 10.8'6 6

A-2XA-1XA-1X A-1X A-1X A-2XA-2X A-2XA-1XA-1X A-1X A-1X A-2XA-2X

3

28.4'
15.6'

11.6'

16.0'

7.
6'

29.6'
29.6'

10
.0

'

12.0'

13.3'

11

1111
11

1111

111111

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

12

BERNARDO SHORESIMPERIAL BEACH, CA
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA  92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198

Scale

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

AUGUST 25, 2014
ARCHITECTURE

0 30  60   90

N



MTSR BDRM

BDRM 2

LNDRY

BA 2

LIVING

DINING
KITCHEN

BA
LC

O
N

Y

PWD

GARAGE

ENTRY
WH

PLAN A-1 2BD / 2.5BA
1ST     80
2ND   545
3RD   520
TOTAL 1,145

21'-0"

25
'-7

"

PLAN A-1X   2BD / 2.5BA
1ST     90
2ND   522
3RD   567
TOTAL 1,180

GARAGE

ENTRY WH

BALCONY

DINING

LIVING

KITCHEN

PWD
MTSR BDRM

BDRM 2

BA 2
LNDRY

21'-0"

25
'-6

1 2"

0  4   8   16

UNIT FLOOR PLANS

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



BDRM 2

BA 2

MTSR BDRM

BDRM 3

LIVING

DINING

KITCHEN

BA
LC

O
N

Y

PWD
LNDRY

PLAN A-2   3BD / 2.5BA
1ST     92
2ND   558
3RD   633
TOTAL 1,283

WHENTRY

GARAGE

25'-0"

25
'-0

"

PLAN A-2X   2BD / 2.5BA
1ST   108
2ND   529
3RD   610
TOTAL 1,247

MTSR BDRM

BDRM 2

BA 2
LNDRY

BA 3

KITCHEN

LIVING

BALCONY

21'-0"

25
'-6

1 2"

GARAGE

ENTRY WH

DINING

0  4   8   16

UNIT FLOOR PLANS

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



PLAN A-3   3BD / 3BA
1ST  105
2ND  575
3RD  620
TOTAL 1,300

BDRM 3

BA 3

LIVING

BALCONY

BDRM 2

MTSR BDRM

BA 2 LNDRY

KITCHEN

GARAGE

WH

ENTRY

21'-0"

28
'-0

"

DINING

   5' PLEXI GLASS RAIL AT UNITS ALONG HIGHWAY 75

GARAGE

BDRM 2 BDRM 3

MSTR BDRM

W

LIVING

DINING

KITCHEN

PWD

ENTRY

D

PWD

FLEX SPACE

DEN

WH

32
'-1

0"

21'-0"

BALCONY

BA 2

BA
LC

O
N

Y
 A

T
 U

N
IT

S
FR

O
N

T
IN

G
 P

O
N

D
PLAN A-4   4BD / 3BA
1ST   210
2ND   660
3RD   680
TOTAL 1,640

   5' PLEXI GLASS RAIL AT UNITS ALONG HIGHWAY 75

0  4   8   16

UNIT FLOOR PLANS

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERAIL BEACH, CA



PLAN A-4

PLAN A-4PLAN A-4

PLAN A-4
PLAN A-4

PLAN A-4

PLAN A-3

PLAN A-3

PLAN A-3

PLAN A-3PLAN A-3

PLAN A-3

84
'-1

0"

32'-10"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'A' COMPOSITE

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



40
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

5'-7"

10'-0"

ELEVATION NOTES

1   CLASS 'A' TYPICAL ROOFING
2   LAP SIDING
3   COMPOSITE RAILINGS
4   ACCENT SHUTTERS
5   RAFTER TAILS
6   DOOR AND WINDOW TRIM
7   DECORATIVE CORBEL
8   DECORATIVE COLUMN
9   SECTIONAL GARAGE DOOR

CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS PANEL SET IN
ALUMINUM C CHANNEL AT BOTTOM
AND EACH SIDE

ALUMINUM C CHANNEL SCREW TO
WALL SET IN SEALANT

2 X 4 WOOD FRAME WALL WITH
STUCCO OVER

42
" 

H
IG

H

NOTE:
PROVIDE AT ALL 3RD FLOOR
BALCONIES FACING SERFAS CLUB DRIVE

30
" 

H
IG

H

BITUTHENE OVER TOP AND DOWN
EACH SIDE 6"

G.S. BALCONY SCUPPER BEYOND

PLI-DEK WATERPROOF DECK SYSTEM

DECK FRAMING PER STRUCTURAL

BUILDING WALL BEYOND

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

9'
-1

"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'A' ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION LEFT ELEVATION

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

PERSPECTIVE

PLEXI GLASS RAIL DETAIL SECTION

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



PLAN A-1
PLAN A-2

PLAN A-4

PLAN A-3

PLAN A-3PLAN A-3

PLAN A-1PLAN A-1

PLAN A-2

PLAN A-2

PLAN A-4

PLAN A-4

PLAN A-1X
PLAN A-1X

PLAN
A-1X

PLAN A-1X

PLAN A-2X
PLAN A-2X

PLAN
A-2X

PLAN A-1X

PLAN
A-1X

13
0'

-5
"

26'-0"

46'-0"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'B' COMPOSITE

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOORTHIRD FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



40
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

ELEVATION NOTES

1   CLASS 'A' TYPICAL ROOFING
2   LAP SIDING
3   COMPOSITE RAILINGS
4   ACCENT SHUTTERS
5   RAFTER TAILS
6   DOOR AND WINDOW TRIM
7   DECORATIVE CORBEL
8   DECORATIVE COLUMN
9   SECTIONAL GARAGE DOOR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

9'
-1

"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'B' ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

PERSPECTIVE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA

SECTION



MSTR BED

MSTR BATH

BA 2

LNDRY

BED 2

22
'-0

"

LOFT / FLEX /

3'-0"46'-0"

GREAT ROOM

KITCHEN

GARAGE

B-1 3BD / 2.5BA
1ST   550
2ND 1,050
TOTAL 1,600

2'-0"

LIVING

KITCHEN

GARAGE
MSTR BED

MSTR BA

BED 2

BED 3

BA 2

22
'-0

"

PDR

LNDRY

52'-0"

B-2 3BD / 2.5BA
1ST   680
2ND 1,120
TOTAL 1,800

DINING

0  4   8   16

2-STORY TOWNHOME FLOOR PLANS

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



MSTR BED

BED 2

MSTR BATH

BA 2

LNDRY

BED 3

BED 4
24

'-0
"

46'-0"

GREAT
ROOM

KITCHEN

PDR

GARAGE

LOFT / FLEX /

3'-0" 3'-0"

52'-0"

2'
-0

"

B-3 4BD+FLEX / 3.5BA
1ST   560
2ND 1,205
LOFT   225
TOTAL 1,990

LOFT

13'-0"

OPT. BA 3

0  4   8   16

2-STORY TOWNHOME FLOOR PLANS

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

OPTIONAL THIRD FLOOR

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



PLAN B-1
PLAN B-1

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'C' COMPOSITE

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



35
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

ELEVATION NOTES

1   CLASS 'A' TYPICAL ROOFING
2   LAP SIDING
3   COMPOSITE RAILINGS
4   ACCENT SHUTTERS
5   RAFTER TAILS
6   DOOR AND WINDOW TRIM
7   DECORATIVE CORBEL
8   DECORATIVE COLUMN
9   SECTIONAL GARAGE DOOR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'C' ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

PERSPECTIVE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA

SECTION



PLAN B-1

PLAN B-1
PLAN B-1

PLAN B-1

PLAN B-1
PLAN B-1

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'D' COMPOSITE

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA



35
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

30
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

ELEVATION NOTES

1   CLASS 'A' TYPICAL ROOFING
2   LAP SIDING
3   COMPOSITE RAILINGS
4   ACCENT SHUTTERS
5   RAFTER TAILS
6   DOOR AND WINDOW TRIM
7   DECORATIVE CORBEL
8   DECORATIVE COLUMN
9   SECTIONAL GARAGE DOOR

9'
-1

"
9'

-1
"

0  8  16   24

BUILDING TYPE 'D' ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

PERSPECTIVE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA

SECTION



35'-0"

40
'-0

"

KITCHEN

GREAT ROOM

BA 2

GARAGE
OFFICE /

OPT. BDRM 5

PLAN C-1   4BD+DEN / 3BA
1ST   925
2ND 1,325
TOTAL 2,250

ALT. ENTRY

PORCH
ON

7TH ST

MSTR BDRM

BDRM 2

BDRM 4
/ OPT. LOFT

BDRM 3

M BATH

LNDRY

BA 3

26
' M

A
X

. H
EI

G
H

T

ELEVATION NOTES

1   CLASS 'A' TYPICAL ROOFING
2   LAP SIDING
3   COMPOSITE RAILINGS
4   ACCENT SHUTTERS
5   RAFTER TAILS
6   DOOR AND WINDOW TRIM
7   DECORATIVE CORBEL
8   DECORATIVE COLUMN
9   SECTIONAL GARAGE DOOR9'

-1
"

9'
-1

"

0  4   8   12

CONCEPTUAL DETACHED BUILDING E

FIRST FLOORSECOND FLOOR

FRONT ELEVATION RIGHT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION LEFT ELEVATION

BERNARDO SHORES
THE BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT OWNER, LLC
2235 Encinitas Blvd., Suite 216
Encinitas, CA 92024
(760) 419-5432

5256 S. Mission Road, Ste 404
Bonsall, CA 92003
760.724.1198AUGUST 25, 2014

ARCHITECTURE

SCALE

PERSPECTIVE

IMPERIAL BEACH, CA

SECTION

















MINUTES  
 
 

TIDELANDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE OF  
THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 

City Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Blvd. 
Imperial Beach, CA 91932 

 
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014 

In accordance with City policy, all Tidelands Advisory Committee meetings are recorded in their 
entirety and recordings are available for review.  These minutes are a brief summary of actions 
taken. 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 

CHAIRPERSON DEDINA called the Regular Meeting to order at 3:12 p.m. 
 
 
2.0 ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: David Van de Water, Joseph Ellis, Vice Chairperson Mary Doyle, 
Chairperson Michel Dedina 

 
ABSENT:  Veronica Archer 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Planner Foltz, Community Development Director Gregory 

Wade; City Clerk Hald, Project Manager Cumming 
 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS  
None. 

 

4.0 BUSINESS FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

BERNARDO SHORES PROJECT INTEGRAL COMMUNITIES (OWNER/APPLICANT); 
DESIGN REVIEW CASE (DRC 130028), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130029), 
TENTATIVE MAP (TM 130030), AND ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL ASSESSMENT (EIA 
130031) FOR THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING RECREATION VEHICLE PARK 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF 193 NEW RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 500 
HIGHWAY 75 IN THE C/MU-1 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE) ZONE.  MF 
1100. 

 
SENIOR PLANNER FOLTZ gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item.  He reported that the 
project will have 193 residential condominium units and a Class 1 bike path would extend from 
Highway 75 to the Bayshore Bikeway.  He reviewed vehicular access, the greenbelt areas, 
recreational amenities, parking and the location of the bike path.  He also reviewed the site plan, 
wetland buffer, the bike path connection and project elevations.  He recommended 
consideration of the project design and approval of the project to the city Council with 
recommendations by the Tidelands Advisory Committee. 
 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA, questioned whether the bike bath would be rebuilt further west with a 
new trajectory.  
 
SENIOR PLANNER FOLTZ responded that it would be a completely new path. 
 

DRAFT 

scarballo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
DAMIAN TAITANO, with Summa Architecture, showed a video of the project and reviewed the 
design. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBER ELLIS, asked about the current grade and elevation of the project site.  
 
MARC PERLMAN, representing Integral Communities, said they would not be bringing in any 
extra fill; their plan is to take the dirt currently on the site and redirect it.  
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON DOYLE, expressed concern regarding the community only having 1 pool 
for 193 homes.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that the amenity to the site is the location, that the pool will most likely 
be serving the residents having parties or wanting to relax. He also stated that residents will 
have their own private patios as well as a short walk to the beach. 

 
CHAIR PERSON DEDINA asked if the pool will be heated in the winter.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that it is up to the HOA.  
 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA stated that maybe there is an alternative to having a pool and the 
applicant stated they saw not having a pool as a negative and there will be a Jacuzzi that 
people can used during winter.  

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER VAN DE WATER asked how many families would be moving into the 
complex that have children.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that it will most likely be people downsizing, young married couples, 
and naval members. 
  
COMMITTEE MEMBER VAN DE WATER showed concern about the school system with the 
added amount of children coming to the community.  

 
VICE CHAIRPERSON DOYLE stated that the community does not seem very children friendly 
and that concerns her. She thinks it will be overcrowded and unsafe for young children.  
 

 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA feels that the project does not feel very much like Imperial Beach. 
Dedina feels it should have more of a Spanish Californian look. Dedina feels that it is too 
packed. Dedina asked if they can do underground parking and reduce the size of the 
townhomes to 2 stories.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that adding underground parking is not practical.  

 
CHAIR PERSON DEDINA asked about the current tenants in the trailer park as to whether or 
not they know this is happening.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that they all have been notified and the majority of them are on a 6 
month lease.  

 
COMMITTEE MEMBER ELLIS asked about the impact on the wetlands for the bike path.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that they are currently mitigating that issue.  



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 
 

 
VICE CHAIRPERSON DOYLE asked about the current bike path accessibility. She pointed out 
that you can only access it from the dangerous highway and would like to know why is there no 
access from 7th.  

 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER GREG WADE stated that the bike path issue is something that 
city council and been discussing this for a while. However, the cost was too high and it was 
denied by city council. However they are still discussing alternative methods to creating a safer 
connection.  

 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA asked if bayshore bikeway would be changed? Applicant stated no. 
Dedina brought up the height of the fences and why they are making them 6’ tall. Applicant 
stated that it is for residential privacy.  
 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA expressed concerns for the lighting on the bike path and 
recommended signs be put up for people to have flashlights and to keep their children on one 
side.  
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that Phase 1 does not affect wetlands and does no need any permits. 
, Phase 2 however does affect wetlands so permits will have to be approved in order to move 
forward with phase 2. 

 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER GREG WADE stated that the issue that Dedina is bringing up is 
a key component that staff and the applicant have discussed and they have the same interests. 
Staff’s objective is to have it happen as quickly as possible.  

 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA asked if there would be low income housing options. 
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that Imperial Beach does not have a low income home standard and 
that that question should be directed to Greg Wade. However, these will most likely be the most 
affordable new homes in the coastal zone in all of California. 

 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA asked if they have taken into consideration the sea level rise. 
 
MARC PERLMAN stated that they did have a study done and the elevations are above 2100. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER GREG WADE stated that it is a requirement for any new project 
to do a sea level rise study and make sure it is above certain levels. 
 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA expressed concern for the possibility of people purchasing these 
homes as investment properties and then abandoning them. He also if the city would consider 
raising the property tax on these homes that are purchased as investments. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER GREG WADE stated that this is a prop 218 questions that this 
vote would have to go to the public and it would probably fail miserably. Staff is requiring that 
there be no prohibition on these units, short term rentals will be available on these units. They 
will also have an HOA that can mitigate unwanted activity.  
 
VICE CHAIRPERSON DOYLE asked whether or not this would be under a mello-roos tax. Greg 
Wade confirmed that it will not.  
 
 
 



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
MOTION BY VAN DE WATER, SECOND BY ELLIS, TO ACCEPT THE PLAS AS 
SUBMITTED.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  
AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS:  VAN DE WATER, ELLIS, DEDINA 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS:  DOYLE 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  ARCHER 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:  NONE 
 
 
5.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/REPORTS 

5.1 Future Agenda Topics Discussion (Non action item) 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER GREG spoke about a tsunami preparedness meeting to go over 
the emergency plan and the impact. He stated that if any committee members have any 
concerns that they would like to go over they can approach the city manager or  council member 
to bring it forward.  

 
 

6.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
CHAIRPERSON DEDINA adjourned the meeting at 4:21 p.m. 

 
Approved: 
 
__________________________ 
Michel Dedina 
Chairperson 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Larissa Lopez 
Recording Secretary 



MINUTES  
 
 

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD OF  
THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 

City Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Blvd. 
Imperial Beach, CA 91932 

 
FRIDAY, AUGUST 1, 2014 

In accordance with City policy, all Design Review Board meetings are recorded in their entirety 
and recordings are available for review.  These minutes are a brief summary of actions taken. 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
CHAIRPERSON NAKAWATASE called the Special meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. 
 

ROLL CALL 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Lopez, Bowman, Schaff, Nakawatase, Phelps (arrived at  
     4:10 p.m.) 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  None  
STAFF PRESENT:    Assistant City Manager Wade, Senior Planner Foltz,  
      City Clerk Hald 
 
2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 
 

3.0 CONSENT CALENDAR 

3.1 MOTION BY SCHAFF, SECOND BY LOPEZ, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR 
THE JUNE 30, 2014 DRB SPECIAL MEETING. 
MOTION BY.  MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  
AYES:  LOPEZ, SCHAFF, NAKAWATASE 
NOES:  NONE 
ABSENT: PHELPS 
ABSTAIN: BOWMAN 

 
4.0 BUSINESS FROM THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

4.1 REPORT: INTEGRAL COMMUNITIES (OWNER/APPLICANT); DESIGN REVIEW 
CASE (DRC 130028), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130029), TENTATIVE MAP (TM 
130030), AND ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL ASSESSMENT (EIA 130031) FOR THE 
DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING RECREATION VEHICLE PARK AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF 193 NEW RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS AT 500 
HIGHWAY 75 IN THE C/MU-1 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE) ZONE.  MF 
1100. 

 
BOARD MEMBER PHELPS arrived at 4:10 p.m. 
 
SENIOR PLANNER FOLTZ gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item.  He reported that the 
project will have 193 residential condominium units and a Class 1 bike path would extend from 
Highway 75 to the Bayshore Bikeway.  He reviewed vehicular access, the greenbelt areas, 
recreational amenities, parking and the location of the bike path.  He also reviewed the site plan, 
wetland buffer, the bike path connection and project elevations.  He recommended 

DRAFT 



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 
 
consideration of the project design and approval of the project to the city Council with 
recommendations by the Design Review Board. 
 
MARC PERLMAN, representing Integral Communities, announced Damian Taitano, with 
Summa Architecture, will show a video of the project.  He also stated that Don Patterson, 
landscape architect and Melissa Krause, Project Manager with Integral Communities are 
available to answer questions. 
 
DAMIAN TAITANO, with Summa Architecture, showed a video of the project and described the 
project and reviewed the design. 
 
BOARD MEMBER BOWMAN expressed concern about the proposal of only one recreational 
area and questioned if this was adequate. 
 
SENIOR PLANNER FOLTZ responded that there is no minimum requirement per the municipal 
code and commented that they are usually market driven. 
 
MARK PEARLMAN also responded by saying there is a pool, Jacuzzi and tot lot in the main 
recreational area, passive areas between buildings where children can play, there are areas 
with tables and barbeques, and where there are connections to the bike trails there will be bike 
storage lockers and there will be community bikes available to residents.  He also added that 
the beach, located nearby, is also a recreational area. 
 
In response to Board Member Bowman’s comments about a housing community that has 
existed since the 1960’s and has several pools, open lawn areas and private patios, DAMIAN 
TAITANO explained that where you see multiple pools and other amenities are usually with 
rental product because they have to entertain and sell to people.  Renters pay for it as they go.  
Homeowners, on the other hand, don’t want to pay for the amenities in perpetuity.  Having one 
of everything is more desirable to a homeowner because the HOA fee isn’t equal to the 
mortgage.  There needs to be a balance of the financial impacts. 
 
In response to Board Member Bowman’s question about connecting the Bike path to the south 
side of SR75, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE responded by giving a history of the City’s 
efforts for a long desired immediate connection from the Bayshore Bikeway to the beach.  A 
project that was in the works (the Bike Spur and part of the TEA 21 Silver Strand Enhancement 
Project) for a Class 1 facility that connected Rainbow Dr. to Palm Ave. was not pursued for a 
number of reasons, most of which related to excessive costs.  City Council directed staff to find 
an alternate route.  He reviewed the concepts for getting bicyclists safely from Palm Ave. to the 
beach, up Rainbow Dr. and to the Class 1 Facility.  
 
In response to questions of the Board, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE and SENIOR 
PLANNER FOLTZ explained pedestrians and bicycles can enter and exit through the gate on 7th 
Street.  Vehicles would have to use the driveway off of SR75.   
 
CHAIR NAKAWATASE expressed concern about traffic on SR75 when elementary school 
children are driven to and from school.  She questioned if it is possible to alter the 7th Street 
entryway to allow for residential vehicular access. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that at a community workshop where 
neighborhood residents were in attendance, the neighbors did not want access through their 
neighborhood due to traffic impacts. He stressed that there is a need to meet the needs and the 
desires of existing residents as well as what functions well from a traffic impact standpoint.  He 



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 
 
stated that the entryway could be redesigned but the applicant would need to revisit their traffic 
impact analysis to determine the impacts to the neighborhood streets. 
 
BOARD MEMBER LOPEZ suggested exit only access off of 7th Street. 
 
In response to Board Member Phelps question about impacts to Rainbow Ave., ASSISTANT 
CITY MANAGER WADE stated that in out-year 2030 scenarios that goes to a Level of Service 
D in the evening.  So there are potential impacts but there is little that the developer can do to 
control that intersection because SR75 is controlled by Caltrans.  He also stated that the City is 
planning and designing pedestrian enhancements and crosswalks (a separate project) on SR 
75 and the applicant has expressed that they will pay their fair share towards the construction of 
the improvements.   
 
In response to Board Member Bowman’s question regarding visitor parking, DAMIAN TAITANO 
stated that there are 18 designated parking spaces and he noted that they are offering more 
parking than is required.   
 
BOARD MEMBER SCHAFF expressed concern about maintenance/removal of trash containers 
by homeowners and he was also concerned about the elementary school traffic. 
 
With regard to the design of the project, the following comments were made: 
 
Three residential units adjacent to 7th Street: 
 
BOARD MEMBER BOWMAN commented that it is odd that there are only three homes in that 
area.   
 
BOARD MEMBER LOPEZ suggested that a secondary emergency gate be installed to allow the 
three homes access off of 7th Street. 
 
With regard to color, BOARD MEMBER LOPEZ likes the continuity of the project.   
 
In response to Board Member Schaff’s question about color, DAMIAN TAITANO stated that the 
original color was more intense.  The proposed color is as presented which are muted colors of 
blue, green and beige.   
 
BOARD MEMBERS BOWMAN AND SCHAFF stated that they like the proposed colors. 
 
Two-story and Three-story condominiums: 
 
No changes were recommended. 
 
CHAIR NAKAWATESE stated that the use of space was very well thought out, the easement for 
mitigation, the bikepath and the entryway on Highway 75 were generous gifts to the community.  
She supported the project. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
The Design Review Board discussed their recommendations. 
 
 
 
 



DRB MINUTES - DRAFT 
August 1, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 
 
MOTION BY NAKWATASE, SECOND BY LOPEZ, TO ACCEPT THE DESIGN REVIEW 
CASE (DRC 130028) ), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130029), TENTATIVE MAP (TM 130030), 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL ASSESSMENT (EIA 130031) AS PRESENTED WITH A 
CONDITION THAT THE 7TH STREET EMERGENCY ACCESS LANE BE AN EXIT ONLY 
GATE FOR THE RESIDENTS. 
 
Discussion: 
 
BOARD MEMBER SCHAFF stated that the motion did not include a consideration of a specific 
timeframe.  He questioned if it was to be exit only at all times. 
 
BOARD MEMBER BOWMAN stated that there was a comment about making the access lane 
accessible to  the three single family homes. 
 
BOARD MEMBER LOPEZ clarified that it was only a suggestion. 
 
CHAIR NAKAWATASE stated that she would modify her motion as follows: 
 
MOTION BY NAKAWATASE, SECOND BY LOPEZ, TO ACCEPT THE DESIGN REVIEW 
CASE (DRC 130028) ), SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130029), TENTATIVE MAP (TM 130030), 
AND ENVIRONMENTAL INITIAL ASSESSMENT (EIA 130031) AS PRESENTED WITH A 
CONDITION THAT THE 7TH STREET EMERGENCY ACCESS LANE BE AN EXIT ONLY 
GATE FOR THE RESIDENTS BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 6:00 A.M. TO 9:00 A.M.  MOTION 
CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  
AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS:  PHELPS, LOPEZ, BOWMAN, SCHAFF, NAKAWATASE 
NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS:  NONE 
ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS:  NONE 
ABSTAIN: BOARD MEMBERS:  NONE 
 
5.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS/REPORTS 

 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE stated that the design for 9th St. and Palm Ave. project is 
being refined and it will be presented to the Design Review Board in the near future. 

 
6.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
CHAIRPERSON NAKAWATASE adjourned the meeting at 5:25 p.m. 

 
Approved: 
 
__________________________ 
Shirley Nakawatase,  
DRB Chairperson 

Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 



STATE  OF  CALIFORNIA -- THE  NATURAL  RESOURCES  AGENCY                                                                                                                                                           EDMUND G. BROWN, JR.,  Governor 

CALIFORNIA  COASTAL  COMMISSION 
SAN DIEGO AREA 

7575 METROPOLITAN DRIVE, SUITE 103 

SAN  DIEGO,  CA    92108-4421   

(619)  767-2370  

      July 11, 2013 
 
 
 
Tyler Foltz 
City of Imperial Beach  
Community Development Dept.  
825 Imperial Beach Blvd.  
Imperial Beach, CA 91932 
 
Re: MF 1100, Applicant Bernardo Shores, at 500 Highway 75, Imperial Beach 
 
Dear Mr. Foltz: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the pending project for removal of the 
existing 124-space recreational vehicle park, and construction of 203 condominium units 
and related facilities (Phase I), and construction of a public bike path connecting to the 
Bayshore Bikeway (Phase II) at 500 Highway 75, Imperial Beach. I apologize for the 
lateness of these remarks. As you may know, Commission staff have met with or 
provided direction at least three times in the last year and a half to individuals interested 
in redeveloping the subject site, including a meeting with City of Imperial Beach staff in 
April 2012 and with private parties in October and November 2012. On each of these 
occasions, Commission staff identified and provided direction on the Coastal Act issues 
associated with removal of the existing RV park and redevelopment of the site. The 
current submittal contains more detailed plans than staff have previously seen, as well as 
technical studies consisting of a Biological Technical Report; a Preliminary Hydrology 
Study; a Phase I Cultural Resources Survey; and a Traffic Impact Analysis. 
 
The subject site is a flag-shaped lot that spans the boundary between the City and the 
Commission’s permit jurisdiction. An exhibit provided by the City in April 2012, and 
confirmed by the Commission’s mapping unit, indicates that approximately 1/3 of the RV 
lot and 2/3 of the portion of the proposed new bikeway that parallels 7th Street would be 
within the Commission’s permit jurisdiction. Thus, one option for the applicant would be 
to process a coastal development permit with the Commission, and a separate permit with 
the City. The City’s permit would be appealable to the Coastal Commission. However, 
since the site is within both the Commission’s original and appeal jurisdiction, and the 
proposed project is an integrated whole that cannot be easily segmented, the other option 
would for the City and the applicant to request that the Commission review the entire 
development under a consolidated permit pursuant to Section 30601.3 of the Coastal Act, 
such that the Coastal Commission would review the entire project as one application. 
 
The existing use on the site is an RV park, which provides lower-cost overnight 
accommodations, one of the highest priority uses identified in the Coastal Act. Section 
30213 of the Coastal Act requires that lower cost visitor and recreational facilities be 
protected and retained, encouraged, and where feasible, provided. The Commission has 
the responsibility to both protect existing lower-cost facilities, and to ensure that a range 

scarballo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5



 
July 11, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
of affordable facilities be provided in new development along the coastline of the state. 
Imperial Beach does not currently have an abundance of existing lower cost overnight 
accommodations within close access to the coast. In such circumstances, the Commission 
has typically required that when removal of existing lower or moderate cost overnight 
accommodations is proposed, the inventory must be replaced with units that are of 
comparable cost and recreational value to the public as the existing units being removed. 
The proposed removal of the 124 RV spaces and replacement with residential uses, a 
low-priority use, without providing any mitigation for the loss of the existing commercial 
recreational use, would have a significant adverse impact on public access and recreation. 
Thus, as proposed, the project would not be consistent with the priority use and public 
access provisions of the Coastal Act.  
 
The standard of review for the portion of the project within the Commission’s jurisdiction 
(or the entire project under a consolidated permit) is the Chapter 3 policies of the Coastal 
Act, with the certified LCP used for guidance. Under the existing certified LCP, the site 
is designated for General Commercial uses. Development on the subject site may include 
residential uses, but only above the first floor. As you know, Commission staff is 
currently reviewing a proposed LCP amendment that would remove this restriction, and 
allow the entire site to be developed with multi-family residential uses. Commission staff 
has advised City staff that removing this LCP provision for development fronting SR-75, 
one of the City’s principal gateways and a major coastal access route, may not be 
consistent with the Coastal Act policies requiring that private lands suitable for visitor-
serving commercial recreational facilities be given priority over private residential 
development. We expect to continue to discuss this issue with City staff over the 
upcoming weeks in the context of the LCP amendment. However, at this time, in addition 
to the objections to losing the existing lower-cost overnight accommodations, 
Commission staff believes that allowing the subject site to be built out entirely with 
residential units without any tourist commercial use component, would be inconsistent 
with the Coastal Act policies prioritizing tourist-commercial uses. 
 
The subject site is adjacent to Pond 10A, which is part of the South San Diego Bay Unit 
of the San Diego Bay National Wildlife Refuge. The biological resources study submitted 
indicates that there is wetland vegetation on and adjacent to the project site, but that the 
residential Phase I portion of the project would be set back 100 feet from the wetlands, 
except for a portion of the proposed bikepath, which would be located within the upper 
50 feet of the buffer. The study also states that the project would “pre-mitigate the future 
impacts of the bike path,” and that “wetland creation of 0.56 acres is planned in the 50 
feet of the buffer zone closest to Pond 10A.” However, the project site plan does not 
include the actual wetland delineation, just a line identified as “environmental zone,” 
such that it is difficult to determine if the proposed development matches the biological 
report. The scaled site plan should be overlaid on the wetlands delineation, so the 
development setback is unambiguous. The submitted plans also do not identify any 
proposed wetland creation. 
 
In addition, the 100-foot setback on the plan is measured from the proposed buildings, 
not from the proposed development, which includes grading, landscaping, and pedestrian 



 
July 11, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
paths upland of the proposed bikepath, within in the buffer. The purpose of establishing a 
buffer area between wetlands and development is to reduce the amount of human, 
domestic animal, and exotic plants intrusion into sensitive vegetation; to reduce the 
impact of human/pet activity on native wildlife species; to provide an area of land which 
can filter drainage and runoff from developed areas before it impacts the wetlands; and to 
provide an upland resting retreat area for some wetland animal species. In order to 
accomplish these goals, the setback from wetlands is established from any proposed 
residential activity, not just from the proposed building. The Commission has permitted 
public trails and other passive public recreational uses within the upper one-half of a 
required wetland buffer because the impacts from these uses are typically minimal and 
provide a public benefit. However, any grading, walkways, or landscaping associated 
with the private residential development must be located outside the 100-foot buffer. 
 
The biological study determined that construction of the bikepath spur connecting to the 
Bayshore Bikeway would result in 0.14 acres of direct impacts to wetlands. Under 
Section 30233(a) of the Coastal Act, the fill of wetlands may be permitted only for 
projects that are one of the seven stated allowable uses: 

 
 (l)   New or expanded port, energy, and coastal-dependent industrial 

facilities, including commercial fishing facilities. 
 
 (2)   Maintaining existing, or restoring previously dredged, depths in 

existing navigational channels, turning basins, vessel berthing and 
mooring areas, and boat launching ramps. 

 
 (3)   In open coastal waters, other than wetlands, including streams, 

estuaries, and lakes, new or expanded boating facilities and the 
placement of structural pilings for public recreational piers that 
provide public access and recreational opportunities. 

 
 (4)   Incidental public service purposes, including but not limited to, 

burying cables and pipes or inspection of piers and maintenance of 
existing intake and outfall lines. 

 
 (5)   Mineral extraction, including sand for restoring beaches, except in 

environmentally sensitive areas. 
 
 (6)   Restoration purposes. 
 
 (7)   Nature study, aquaculture, or similar resource dependent activities. 

 
Construction of a bike path is not one of the permitted uses in a wetland. Furthermore, a 
bike path in the proposed location connecting the Bayshore Bikeway to Highway 75 
would be of limited recreational value, as the Bikeway already connects to Highway 75 
approximately ½ miles north of the subject site. Thus, construction of the proposed 
bikepath would not be consistent with the resource protection policies of the Coastal Act. 



 
July 11, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 
 
The Commission’s ecologist is reviewing the biological study and may have additional 
comments. However, at this time, in order for staff to assess the wetland delineation, the 
applicant should submit the original field data sheets and a map showing sample points 
that were used to create the wetlands delineation. 
 
Other issues that should be addressed in the project review include the requirement that 
the proposed structures avoid any potential for predator perching, and that the design of 
the project (façade, coloring, etc.) complement the adjacent natural environment. The 
addition of 203 new housing units should also be assessed in terms of how the project 
includes transportation demand management strategies. Finally, the proposed timing of 
the two project phases is not clear; however, if the project includes a public bikepath 
component, construction of the public amenity should be required to be completed prior 
to or concurrent with the private portion of the development, and not deferred to a later 
phase. 
 
In summary, the proposed project would have significant, adverse impacts on high-
priority, lower-cost, overnight accommodations, and wetlands resources, inconsistent 
with the priority use, public access, and biological resource policies of the Coastal Act. 
Thus, it is unlikely that Commission staff would be able to support the subject proposal. 
The Coastal Commission itself would make the final decision on any permit application. 
Thank you again for the opportunity to comment. If you have any questions, please feel 
free to call me. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
 
      Diana Lilly 
      Coastal Planner 
  
 
 
 
 (G:\San Diego\DIANA\Imperial Beach misc\Bernardo Shores\July 2013 comment letter.docx) 

Signature on file





Signature on file



scarballo
Typewritten Text

scarballo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 6












































































	Agenda
	2.1
	2.2
	2.3
	2.4
	2.5
	2.6
	2.7
	4.1
	5.1
	5.2
	5.3



